
 [External Email]

From: Keyon, David
To: Downtown West Project
Subject: Fw: NEWS RELEASE: Google’s “Downtown West” Project in San Jose Moves Forward with Updated Plans and

Draft Environmental Impact Report
Date: Wednesday, October 7, 2020 4:37:14 PM

David Keyon
Principal Planner, Environmental Review
City of San Jose
(408) 535-7898   david.keyon@sanjoseca.gov

From: City of San Jose <webrequests@sanjoseca.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 7, 2020 3:46 PM
To: Keyon, David <david.keyon@sanjoseca.gov>
Subject: NEWS RELEASE: Google’s “Downtown West” Project in San Jose Moves Forward with
Updated Plans and Draft Environmental Impact Report
 
 

 

NEWS RELEASE: Google’s “Downtown West” Project in San Jose
Moves Forward with Updated Plans and Draft Environmental Impact
Report
San José officials invite public to join meetings and to comment on new project
documents, all leading to a Spring 2021 City Council decision
Post Date: 
10/07/2020 3:30 PM

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
CONTACT
Cheryl Wessling, Public Information Manager, Department of Planning, Building
and Code Enforcement
408-535-6817; cheryl.wessling@sanjoseca.gov
Elisabeth Handler, Public Information Manager, Office of Economic Development
408-535-8168; elisabeth.handler@sanjoseca.gov
Visual Asset: Downtown
West By the Numbers
Google’s “Downtown West” Project in San Jose Moves Forward with Updated

Plans and Draft Environmental Impact Report
San José officials invite public to join meetings and to comment on new project

documents, all leading to a Spring 2021 City Council decision
SAN JOSE, Calif. (October 7, 2020) – A key milestone for Google, Inc.’s
approximate 80-acre Downtown West Mixed-Use Project in San José is being
reached on Wednesday, October 7, 2020, as the City publishes the next
iteration of
the project plans and related draft environmental impact report (DEIR). Google
originally submitted a development application to the City on October 10, 2019;

mailto:david.keyon@sanjoseca.gov
mailto:downtownwest@esassoc.com
mailto:cheryl.wessling@sanjoseca.gov
mailto:elisabeth.handler@sanjoseca.gov
https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.sanjoseca.gov%2FHome%2FShowImage%3Fid%3D11756%26t%3D637375837080640480&data=01%7C01%7Cdavid.keyon%40sanjoseca.gov%7Cce7b3b38e9974e80073b08d86b12d53a%7C0fe33be061424f969b8d7817d5c26139%7C1&sdata=W3U1B0ZV9qoKC5q8Z303UsVGg7m5qjJryDq6FaLygE8%3D&reserved=0


today Google has submitted updated plans and the remaining documents that enable
further
public input as well as enabling the City to complete its review process. This
puts the project on track to reach the City Council for their consideration and
possible approval in Spring 2021.
“The Downtown West project, combined with our investments in transit nearby,
will catalyze the revitalization of our city’s core and transform a city built for
automobiles into a city built for people,” said Mayor Sam Liccardo. “Particularly
amid all the challenges
of this pandemic, I’m grateful for the persistent
collaboration between Google and City staff to enable our community to benefit
from thousands of jobs, affordable apartments, vibrant retail and restaurants, public
plazas, and park space.” 
 “Google and City staff have worked incredibly hard to keep the project moving
forward through the pandemic, which delayed the project review and related
outreach by a few months. We are elated to reach this milestone and publicly share
the
Downtown West Updated Submittal and DEIR,” said Rosalynn Hughey,
director of the Department of Planning, Building and Code Enforcement. 
Hughey noted that Google’s submittal a year ago was very conceptual, and the
community has been eager to see the concepts fleshed out. Google and the City have
held numerous community meetings and informational fairs on the original concept
and have used that
public feedback to shape and make refinements to the project.
 “San José has been soliciting and embodying community input for nearly three
years,” said Deputy City Manager Kim Walesh. In 2018 as then-Director of
Economic Development, Walesh led the launch of a significant community
engagement initiative for both Google’s
proposed Downtown West project and the
Diridon Station Area Plan update. “I want to thank our community members for
getting involved. We now have updated, more specific information to share and
welcome the continued public feedback that will shape the project
to reflect our
community’s needs and aspirations.”
The community engagement process is continuing with an invitation to view and
give feedback on Google’s updated plans and DEIR, and a community meeting on
the project is scheduled for October 19, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. Both the City’s Google
Project website and
the Diridon Station Area website provide links to finding
documents, meeting details, project videos, and a feedback form:
www.sanjoseca.gov/GoogleProject and www.diridonsj.org
Updated Submittal & Review Process 
As is common for projects on a large site and entailing multiple buildings that may
take many years to build out, there is a somewhat complex review process for the
Downtown West Updated Submittal, entailing several planning documents. The
project – subject to City Council approval – is proposed to come together through
the following elements:

A Planned Development (PD) Zoning district specifically for the Downtown
West project site. This establishes allowable land uses and development
standards, such as maximum building heights.

A Planned Development Permit, which is a regulatory document that
implements the PD zoning. The PD Permit includes design standards and
guidelines with chapters on land use, buildings, open space, mobility,
sustainability, lighting and signage. In future
years, the standards/guidelines
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apply to any proposed building site or individual building design. As each
design is submitted, City staff will review it for compliance with the PD Zoning
and PD Permit and hold a public meeting for input.

Amendments to the City General Plan, Diridon Station Area Plan, and a
Historic Landmark District. These proposed amendments would
accommodate the project’s proposed mix of land uses and allow much more
housing than is currently allowed on the site.

Environmental Review - On a separate but concurrent track, the public is
invited to give input on the draft environmental impact report (DEIR). Public
feedback in 2019 was used to scope the content of the DEIR, and the initial
analysis is complete and now
available for public comments. The DEIR
addresses the potential physical impacts of the build-out of the project, such
as impacts to air quality, water quality, transportation networks, historic
resources, and more. Public comments on the DEIR must be made
in writing
by 5:00m p.m. on November 23 to garner a staff response in the final EIR. The
City Council must certify the final EIR prior to making a decision on the
project, which is targeted for Spring 2021. The DEIR is available at
www.bit.ly/DowntownWestEIR.

“This is far from a typical proposed development and both the project and the
process around it are extraordinary,” said Hughey. “In addition to Google’s offices,
it proposes housing, a hotel, parkland, open space, active uses including retail, and
community
features within steps of the Diridon Station, which itself is being
redesigned. The Google Project is implementing the community’s vision outlined in
the Diridon Station Area Plan for a new, vibrant mixed-use neighborhood district.
We look forward to see continued
public engagement on this.”
About the City of San José
With more than one million residents, San José is one of the most diverse large
cities in the United States and is Northern California’s largest city and the 10th
largest city in the nation. San José’s transformation into a global innovation center
has
resulted in one of the largest concentrations of technology companies and
expertise in the world. In 2011, the City adopted Envision San José 2040, a long-
term growth plan that sets forth a vision and a comprehensive road map to guide
the City’s anticipated
growth through the year 2040.
About Google’s Proposed Downtown West Mixed-Use Project
The San José City Council approved a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with
Google, Inc. in 2018. It includes a vision for the Diridon area, goal statements, and
the commitment to develop a community benefits plan as part of the Development
Agreement, among
other provisions. The MOU provides the foundation for the
proposed development and the City’s review process.
Google submitted its application for a mixed-use development project (Downtown
West Mixed-Use Plan) to the City of San Jose Planning Division on October 10,
2019. The project site is approximately 80 acres and located largely within the
Diridon Station
Area Plan (DSAP) boundaries of 250 acres on the west end of
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downtown San José. The City review process for the Downtown West Project is
outlined at
www.sanjoseca.gov/GoogleProject, the related environmental impact
report information is outlined at
www.bit.ly/DowntownWestEIR, and community
engagement on both the Google Project and the City’s process to amend the DSAP
is outlined at
www.diridonsj.org. The City welcomes and encourages public
involvement with these important projects.
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